
 
 
 

 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  Contact: Stacey Gilmour 

Scrutiny Officer: Susan O’Connell 
Thursday, 11 October 2018 at 7.30 pm  Direct: 020-8379-4187 
Conference Room, Civic Centre, Silver 
Street, Enfield, EN1 3XA 

 Tel: 020-8379-1000 
  
 E-mail: Stacey.gilmour@enfield.gov.uk 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
Councillors : Derek Levy (Chair), Huseyin Akpinar, Tolga Aramaz, Susan Erbil, 
Gina Needs (Vice-Chair), Lee David-Sanders and Edward Smith 
 
 
Education Statutory Co-optees: 1 vacancy (Church of England diocese 
representative), Simon Goulden (other faiths/denominations representative), Tony 
Murphy (Catholic diocese representative), Alicia Meniru & 1 vacancy (Parent 
Governor Representative). 
 
Enfield Youth Parliament Co-optees (2) 
Support Officer – Susan O’Connell (Governance & Scrutiny Officer) 
Stacey Gilmour (Governance & Scrutiny Officer) 
 

 
AGENDA – PART 1 

 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES   
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 Members of the Council are invited to identify any disclosable pecuniary, 

other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests relevant to items on the agenda. 
 

3. CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN'S SERVICES, COUNCILLOR 
ACHILLEAS GEORGIOU   

 
 This is a discussion item. 

 
4. COMMERCIAL STRATEGY  (Pages 1 - 32) 
 
 To receive a report from Nicky Fiedler, Commercial Director.  

 
5. WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19  (Pages 33 - 36) 
 
 To note the work programme for 2018/19. 

 
6. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   
 

Public Document Pack



 To note the dates of future meetings as follows: 
 
Provisional Call-Ins 

 Thursday 8 November 2018 

 Thursday 6 December 2018 

 Thursday 20 December 2018 

 Thursday 7 February 2019 

 Tuesday 12 March 2019 

 Tuesday 26 March 2019 

 Thursday 11 April 2019 
 

Please note, the business meetings of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee will 
be held on: 

 Wednesday 7 November 2018 

 Tuesday 12 February 2019 

 Wednesday 3 April 2019 
 
The Overview & Scrutiny Budget Meeting will be held on: 

 Tuesday 15 January 2019 

 
7. EXCLUSION OF PRESS & PUBLIC   
 
 To consider, if necessary, passing a resolution under Section 100A (4) of the 

Local Government Act 1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting 
for the item of business listed in Part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that it 
will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those 
paragraphs of Part 1 Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006), as are listed on 
the agenda (Please note there is not a Part 2 agenda). 
 

 
 

 



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2018/2019 REPORT NO.       

 
MEETING TITLE AND DATE:  
Overview and Scrutiny  
11th October 2018 
 
REPORT OF: 
Commercial Director  
 

Contact officer and telephone number: 

Nicky Fiedler 

E mail: nicky.fiedler@enfield.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Subject: Commercial Strategy  
 
Wards: All  
Key Decision No: 4742 
  

Agenda – Part: 
  
 

Cabinet Member consulted: Cllr Ahmet 
Oykener 
 

Item:  

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Enfield like many councils is facing the difficult challenge of managing funding 
reductions, coupled with increasing demand for essential services.  
 
The need for local authorities to adopt a more holistic, entrepreneurial and 
innovative approach to stimulate income generation is essential.  
 
If a more commercial approach can be successfully implemented by the council, 
it can play a significant role in helping to sustain the service provision that meets 
local need and simultaneously can add wider value that will boost growth, 
support vulnerable communities and protect the environment.  
 
The Commercial Strategy – ‘Securing Enfield’s Future’ sets the vision for Enfield 
to be a resilient, innovative and enterprising Council delivering sustainable 
services that meet resident needs.  It seeks to embed an innovative and more 
commercially aware approach to how we deliver services with partners in a way 
that will benefit our residents. It is characterised by an inclusive, dynamic and 
transparent approach to how income generation and the ongoing pursuit of 
value for money in a changing environment can help secure the long-term 
delivery of services that are critical to our residents. 
 

 

 

 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 OSC to review the Commercial Strategy, plan on a page and indicative 

year 1 pipeline and provide feedback. 
 
2.2 Cabinet to approve the Commercial Strategy (appendix 1), plan on a page 

(appendix 2), and the indicative year 1 pipeline (appendix 3) 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Since 2010, Government support to all local authorities has reduced 

substantially. By 2019/20, the amount of funding Enfield Council 
receives from Government will have reduced by over £100m since the 
turn of the decade.  

 
3.2 This is presenting local authorities like ours with a degree of challenge 

unparalleled in modern times.  In response, Enfield Council is 
transforming its approach to service delivery, to help rebalance its 
budget and make the greatest difference to our residents. This is an 
opportunity to review what the Council does, how it works and what is 
prioritised. 

 
3.3 As austerity continues a new, more agile, innovative and commercially 

aware operating model is required to ensure limited resources are used 
to leverage maximum value and create a financially sustainable 
organisation that meets the changing needs and expectations of 
residents. We are aware that business as usual is not an option and 
that all areas of the council will be moving toward an approach that is 
more mindful of how service delivery can be innovatively shaped to 
deliver sustainable and positive outcome for our residents.  

 
3.4 This strategy sets out how the local authority will take a holistic 

approach to stimulate the innovation and enterprise from within and 
working with our partners that will play a key role in securing future 
service delivery. It is vital that this culture is nurtured within the council 
to ensure the robustness of the local authority, forming a fundamental 
part of how we plan and do business in the coming years. 

 
3.5 As a resident focused, public service organisation we are committed to 

making increased commercial acumen a part of how we conduct 
business to deliver positive social outcomes. It is imperative that we 
use all our combined skill and effort to deliver services that can meet 
evidenced need and help to address inequality in our borough.  

 
3.6 The strategy benefits from knowing that the principles contained within, 

if applied correctly, can deliver the sustainable income streams to 
positively affect social outcomes by adding to organisational 
robustness. Our starting point is building on what works. The portfolio 
of emerging trading companies has shown what is possible when we 
empower staff and take measured and informed risk. This has helped 
build the organisational confidence we need to enable future as we 
seek to roll out a more innovative and enterprising approach out across 
the organisation in the years ahead. 

 
3.7 The creation of a new Commercial Board, a key aspiration of the 

strategy, will augment current thinking, coordinate support and 
empower staff to look afresh at how deliver services and meet 

Page 2



resident’s needs. The introduction of a new, transparent ‘rolling 
pipeline’ approach to considering innovative proposals, will give the 
added organisational robustness and challenge needed when 
considering new commissioning activities. It will provide the weight and 
scrutiny to ensure future delivery and whole council outcomes are 
realised; rewarding those who see opportunities in taking calculated 
risk and increasing the acumen within the local authority.  

 
3.8 The Commercial pipeline follows the core focus of the strategy and 

themes of; 

 Assets and investments  

 Contract management 

 Income generating services  

 Trading companies 

 Traded services   

 Procurement & Commissioning   
 
3.9 Appendix 2 is an indicative year 1 pipeline, which focuses on getting 

the foundations in place for the Council to be more commercially 
aware, maximise the use of its existing resources, whilst also 
developing opportunities for future growth to support a sustainable 
budget.  

 
3.9 This new strategy will provide a great organisational asset to the local 

authority, embedding a commercial mindset and innovative approach 
to service delivery and future business planning which will form a key 
element in securing the future delivery of high-quality outcomes for our 
residents. 

 
  
 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 Not to have a Commercial Strategy and to rely on alternative 

approaches to meeting local needs with fewer resources  
 
5. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
5.1 The successful adoption of the strategy will deliver multiple benefits 

including: 
 

 Developing new, robust and measurable incomes streams to support 

services and rebalance the budget 

 

 Initiate an environment where staff think collaboratively and 

imaginatively to deliver new ways of service delivery to meet resident 

needs 

 

Page 3



 Increasing the robustness of the organisation and its collective acumen 

to ensure long term organisational evolution and prosperity 

 

 Providing a robust and inclusive approach to support decision making 

processes that will drive future council ambitions 

 

 Create a deeper, more effective understanding of our assets and their 

future applications  

 

 Inspire staff by embedding a forward thinking, opportunity focused 

mindset that can drive wider culture shift and make a positive 

difference 

 

 Increase transparency and accountability as to how we do business 

 

 Build organisational strength by investing in the skills and resilience of 

our own workforce to reduce costs incurred from seeking external 

support 

 
 
5. COMMENTS OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RESOURCES AND 

OTHER DEPARTMENTS 
 

5.1 Financial Implications 
 
The 2019/20 financial year will be the ninth year in which local 
government has faced significant funding reductions. Enfield Council’s 
core government funding has been reduced by over 50% since 
2010/11, a cash reduction of £100m. Over this period, increasing 
service demand has created significant budgetary pressures. 2019/20 
is also the final year of the four-year settlement, and the financial 
outlook beyond then is uncertain. 
 
A target of £18m of savings/income generation has been set for 
2019/20. The target has been set at £18m to manage the projected 
budget gap, the additional cost pressures identified in the outturn 
report, and over time to reduce reliance on one-off sources of funding, 
such as using capital receipts to fund transformational work. The aim is 
to create a sustainable and financially resilient medium term financial 
plan which will enable us to provide reliable and dependable services 
for our residents. 
 
The outcomes of implementing the Commercial Strategy and adopting 
a more commercial approach to what we do and becoming more 
entrepreneurial and innovative in finding solutions will contribute 
towards the financial aims, pressures and targets that the Council face 
as described above.  
 

Page 4



 
5.2 Legal Implications  
 
The general power of competence in s.1 (1) of the Localism Act 2011 
states that a local authority has the power to do anything that 
individuals generally may do provided it is not prohibited by legislation 
and subject to Public Law principles.   

 
In addition, under section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
 Council has the power to do anything which is calculated to facilitate, or 
 is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of any of its functions. The 
proposals within this Report are in accordance with these powers. 
 
The Council will need to ensure that the implementation of any 
proposals under the Commercial Strategy complies with existing 
legislation, including but not limited to local government and 
procurement legislation, and also with the Council’s own Constitution 

 
 

6. KEY RISKS  
 

None identified  
 

7. IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES  
 

7.1 Good homes in well-connected neighbourhoods  
 
The Commercial Strategy supports the creative delivery of good homes 
and the well-connected infrastructure.  Both in terms of housing 
provision and wider impact and linkages to the local economy  
 
7.2 Build our local economy to create a thriving place  
 
The Commercial Strategy will have a positive local economic impact 
and create a lifetime of opportunities in Enfield. 

 
7.3 Sustain strong and healthy communities 
 
Our residents and communities are at the centre of what we do. This 

means to have a positive impact we will have a greater insight into our 

residents and will make informed decisions on where we prioritise our 

work – linked to need and available income 

 
 

8. EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS  
 

8.1 Local authorities have a responsibility to meet the Public Sector 
Duty of the Equality Act 2010. The Act gives people the right not 
to be treated less favourably because of any of the protected 

Page 5



characteristics. We need to consider the needs of these diverse 
groups when designing and changing services or budgets So 
that our decisions it do not unduly or disproportionately affect 
access by some groups more than others. 

 
8.2 Corporate advice has been sought in regard to equalities and it 

is recommended that a Predictive Equalities Impact Assessment 
be undertaken on the proposed new Commercial strategy to 
ensure that the service continues to benefit the community and 
is fully accessible particularly by those in the protected 
characteristic groups. 

 
 

9. PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS  
 
9.1 There are 3 aspects that the Commercial Strategy and Board will be 

able to consider and take advantage of in order to improve health: 
 

 As income has reduced and continues to reduce a commercial focus 
should allow LBE to better support services to vulnerable residents. 

 

 An overview should provide efficiencies and savings through avoiding 
savings in one department costing more in another.  This principle 
should also apply between public sector organisations. 

 

 The Board will be able to take account of the impact of commercial and 
other LBE activities on the environment.  The environment is ultimately 
the greatest asset the Council and residents have, it will not be in 
anyone’s interest if its long-term prosperity is lost for short-term 
commercial gain. 
 

10. PERFORMANCE IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Corporate Performance Team are supporting Commercial 
Services to create and embed a robust performance management 
framework which enables the services to monitor effective delivery of 
the Commercial Strategy.  
 

 
 

Background Papers 
 

Appendix 1 – Commercial Strategy  
 

Commercial 

Strategy Final_ (002).pdf
 

 
 

Page 6



 
Appendix 2 – Commercial Plan on a page 
 

 
 
 
Appendix 3 – Commercial Pipeline - Year 1 
 

 

ESSP1115 

Commercial pipeline A4 landscape.pdf
 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



www.enfield.gov.uk

SECURING  
ENFIELD’S 
FUTURE Commercial Strategy October 2018

commercial@enfield.gov.uk

Page 9



2 Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................................. 3

VISION AND PURPOSE ....................................................................................................................... 4

A FOCUS ON INNOVATIVE AND ENTERPRISE ............................................................................... 5

BUILDING A NEW APPROACH .......................................................................................................... 7

SUPPORTING CHANGE  ..................................................................................................................... 9

DEVELOPING NEW PROPOSALS: ENGAGING THE PIPELINE ...................................................11

INCLUSIVE, ROBUST GOVERNANCE: THE COMMERCIAL BOARD ..........................................13

MEASURING SUCCESS .....................................................................................................................14

ENSURING CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT ..................................................................................14

CASE STUDIES ...................................................................................................................................15

51ST STATE FESTIVAL, 2017, PARKS BUSINESS UNIT

Page 10



Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy 3

INTRODUCTION 

Since 2010, Government support to all local authorities has reduced 
substantially. By 2019/20, the amount of funding Enfield Council receives from 
Government will have reduced by over £100m since the turn of the decade. This 
is presenting local authorities like ours with a degree of challenge unparalleled 
in modern times.
In response, Enfield Council is transforming its approach to service delivery, to help rebalance its 
budget and make the greatest difference to our residents. This is an opportunity to review what the 
Council does, how it works and what is prioritised.

As austerity continues a new, more agile, innovative and commercially aware operating model is 
required to ensure limited resources are used to leverage maximum value and create a financially 
sustainable organisation that meets the changing needs and expectations of residents. We are 
aware that business as usual is not an option and that all areas of the council will be moving toward 
an approach that is more mindful of how service delivery can be innovatively shaped to deliver 
sustainable and positive outcome for our residents. 

This strategy sets out how the local authority will take a holistic approach to stimulate the innovation 
and enterprise from within and working with our partners that will play a key role in securing future 
service delivery. It is vital that this culture is nurtured within the council to ensure the robustness of the 
local authority, forming a fundamental part of how we plan and do business in the coming years.

As a resident focused, public service organisation we are committed to making increased commercial 
acumen a part of how we conduct business to deliver positive social outcomes. It is imperative that 
we use all our combined skill and effort to deliver services that can meet evidenced need and help to 
address inequality in our borough. 

This new strategy document will be a vital guiding asset for the local authority as we seek to achieve 
these goals.

Page 11



4 Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy

VISION AND PURPOSE 

The realisation of our vision will help to ensure the local authority continues to deliver high quality 
services to local residents and in doing so, can also stimulate wider social, economic and 
environmental benefits for Enfield.

Enfield Council seeks to embed an innovative and more commercially aware approach to how we 
deliver services with partners in a way that will benefit our residents. It is characterised by an inclusive, 
dynamic and transparent approach to how income generation and the ongoing pursuit of value for 
money in a changing environment can help secure the long-term delivery of services that are critical to 
our residents.

The new strategy will be delivered through the successful adoption of guiding principles contained 
here and supported by wider cultural shift within the organisation. By dismantling traditional silo 
working we will create the collaborative approach we now require, and in delivery with partners, this 
will give us the outcomes based solutions our residents need. 

The strategy has been co-produced with and will be owned by the whole organisation as its success 
relies upon collaboration, instilling a commercial sensibility in the workforce. Whilst the team led by the 
Commercial Director has a critical role in supporting this new approach, it will only truly succeed if it is 
adopted by those who can evolve new solutions to service delivery across the organisation. 

The reinforcement of ‘One Council’ thinking through adoption of the strategy will lead the organisation 
to a position where it gains additional benefits from service delivery agreements with partners and better 
understands the interconnectivity within that is the hallmark of a modern, forward thinking local authority.

To be a resilient, innovative and enterprising Council delivering 
sustainable services that meet resident needsVISION

NEWLY OPENED OAK 
TREE MEMORIAL GARDEN, 
LAVENDER CEMETERY

Page 12



Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy 5

A FOCUS ON INNOVATION AND 
ENTERPRISE

The core focus of the strategy is to bring about a new way of thinking and working that will help 
create and capture the opportunities and expand the ways the Council can secure income, explore 
new ideas and implement alternative ways to acquire and use available resources to be more effective 
in meeting needs in the borough.

This strategy impacts on all departments and services across the council but it is recognised that no 
one approach can be applied to all and consequently different actions and areas of improvement can 
be expected.

a. Delivering benefits

The successful adoption of the strategy will deliver multiple benefits including:

• Ensuring our resources are used sustainably to deliver the outcomes our residents need.

• Providing positive social, economic and environmental outcomes that can help with ‘creating 
a lifetime of opportunities in Enfield’

• Developing new, robust and measurable incomes streams to support services and rebalance 
the budget

• Initiate an environment where staff think collaboratively and imaginatively to deliver new ways 
of service delivery to meet resident needs

• Increasing the robustness of the organisation and its collective acumen to ensure long term 
organisational evolution and prosperity

• Providing a robust and inclusive approach to support decision making processes that will 
drive future council ambitions

• Create a deeper, more effective understanding of our assets and their future applications 

Core focus
Innovation and Enterprise

Commissioning Procurement Contract management

Assets and 
investments

Income generating 
services

Traded 
services

Trading 
companies

Page 13



6 Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy

• Inspire staff by embedding a forward thinking, opportunity focused mindset that can drive 
wider culture shift and make a positive difference

• Increase transparency and accountability as to how we do business

• Build organisational strength by investing in the skills and resilience of our own workforce to 
reduce costs incurred from seeking external support

b. Supporting our corporate planning and influencing wider strategy development

The Commercial Strategy is a document that will be owned across the organisation and provides 
a positive influence on how we plan and deliver services. It provides a significant driver to 
facilitate the realisation of our new Corporate Plan and has strategic fit with the intended priorities 
of the new council administration. It will be a key enabler allowing the council to ‘work smartly for 
you’ and its impact will be evidenced in all aspects of service delivery if implemented correctly.

It is a document for the whole organisation with strong linkage to:

• Regeneration & Environment (Inc. Economic Development)
• Procurement
• ICT and Digital
• Local Plan
• Medium Term Financial Plan
• Adult Social Care
• Children and Young 

People’s Plan
• Customer Experience

We expect to be fully able to 
evidence influence and impact 
on wider strategic aims during 
the lifetime of the strategy. This 
will be demonstrated through 
developing a scorecard that 
will provide evidence of impact 
across the organisation (see 
section on measuring success).

Get fit and healthy when you grow your own 

AVAILABLE 

ALLOTMENT PLOTS

To hire an allotment, contact us today  
 
parksbusinessunit@enfield.gov.uk
www.enfield.gov.uk/allotments

ALLOTMENTS CAMPAIGN, 2018

Page 14



Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy 7

BUILDING A NEW APPROACH 

When developing the strategy, it was vital to demonstrate strong connectivity to our new Corporate 
Plan – “Creating a lifetime of Opportunities in Enfield’. A new, more commercially focused and 
innovative approach will add significant and measurable value to our overarching aims of ‘Good 
homes in well-connected neighbourhoods’, ‘Sustain strong and healthy communities’ and ‘Build our 
local economy to create a thriving place’, The primary driver for delivering a new approach is ensure 
the local authority is best placed to help improve the quality of life for all our residents.

Guiding principles 

The leadership of the organisation has agreed that underpinning the delivery of this strategy will be the 
need for:

• A commercial discipline – where all staff are aware of how their department or service is funded, 
where the money is spent and whether it provides value for money for residents.

• Entrepreneurial spirit – to encourage innovative thinking, measured risk taking and targeted 
investments to achieve positive social outcomes and ensure that each income generating 
service area, is at a minimum, fully recovering the cost of all activities, and, at best, generating a 
contribution to support statutory services or create new opportunities.

• Openness and honesty – to support greater scrutiny and analysis on performance, affordability 
and the changes that need to be made to work smartly.

a. A dynamic and empowering organisational culture

The local authority will facilitate cultural shift based on consensus that can enable a flexible, 
dynamic and commercially aware culture to flourish. It will ensure a working environment that 
is cooperative in nature and is engaging outwards with partners where appropriate to exploit 
opportunities and generate income without sacrificing the primary function of local authority, to 
meet resident’s needs,

To do this we will take our lead from the wider cultural change programme to create culture where:

• The residents are at the centre 
This means we have greater insight into our residents and are making informed decisions on 
where we prioritise our work – linked to demand and available income

• Innovation and enterprise is at its core 
For skilled staff to expect to do things differently and be continually looking for fresh ideas and 
new ways of working

• Income generation is prioritised along with quality delivery 
For each department and service to take responsibility for identifying income streams and 
efficiencies

b. Understanding our business and its economic potential

The strategy is predicated on the basis that service delivery, in all areas of the local authority can 
be more efficient and entrepreneurial, but that this will require a cultural shift within the organisation 
supported by a new way of thinking and using our data to make a difference. This will empower 
staff to manage services more commercially and be informed in strategic decision making.

Page 15



8 Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy

The new strategy will allow the organisation to empower itself to re-examine how services are 
delivered and assess their capacity for development and competitiveness from business-critical 
perspectives.

• Affordability of Council infrastructure: continually reviewing central costs and procurement 
outlays to ensure Council services and assets are commercially competitive

• Full cost of operation: considering the whole life costs; from policy setting, infrastructure, 
cross-service contribution to customer evaluation

• A broad scope: looking at the wider market to determine who is best placed to meet 
the residents needs and increase income where possible e.g. through collaborations and 
partnerships, commissioned or contracted work and direct delivery.

• Market data and analysis: Considering gaps and testing new and innovative ways of 
developing new services

• New entities and structures: Creating new ways of operating to maximise the return e.g. 
Local Authority Trading Companies

• Invest to grow services: Broadening the customer base of high performing and high 
demand Council services to grow and improve their trading position

• Investment portfolio: Continuing to invest public funds to secure best financial return and 
sustainable revenue streams

c.  Building on what works, stimulating further success

The strategy builds on what we know works from our experience so far. We aim to successfully 
share learning across the organisation and complete baseline information gathering and analysis 
that can support:

• All departments and services fully understanding the service costs, income opportunities and 
implement market focused delivery

• Existing and new traded services to sustain and increase commercial performance
• Existing and new income generating services to secure full cost recovery and unlock any 

untapped areas to attract additional income
• Shared/joint services to pool resources and exploit economies of scale
• Subsidised services to source additional income for priority services that cannot delivery full 

cost recovery
• Commercial Partnerships to learn from and develop partnerships in the borough with 

commercial advantage
• Council owned companies to ensure that they are delivering in line with expectations
• Asset development to use existing assets to provide the best financial return
• Capital investment to use funds to create a strong investment portfolio
• Commissioning and procurement to create a robust supply chain that offers best value for 

money
• Contract management to ensure we get the highest standards for the best return for our 

outsourced activities
• Policy objectives to ensure the direction of commercial travel is considered and embedded in 

future priorities and activities

We would expect all or some of these outcomes to apply to most of service areas in the 
local authority that could benefit from internal review and for new proposals to emerge for 
consideration by the local authority as a result.

Page 16



Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy 9

SUPPORTING CHANGE 
 

The new strategy contains the ambition and direction for the council-wide response to the challenge 
we have set. The Commercial Director and team will be available to provide a valuable supporting 
resource and be a ‘critical friend’ for those considering what opportunities may be open to them in 
future service delivery.

a.  Preparing the organisation for a more commercial approach to service 
development and delivery

As part of the process of creating greater organisational capacity we have identified some key 
questions that operational delivery leads and Directors can consider establishing their present 
capability and scope for innovation and enterprise in their core business areas. 

• Are services commercially ready? The review phase will be able to ascertain the commercial 
readiness of service areas and the degree to which they can deliver commercial success for 
the local authority.

• Do we have the capacity to deliver the new approach – understanding of what’s required, 
service configuration, Data Management and people?

• Is data available and managed in a way that can assist?
• Does the organisation plan effectively to optimise its use of resources?
• Is there a fully informed approach to risk taking and risk management?
• Are our IT resources fit for purpose?
• If seeking to create new avenues, are we likely to be competitive?

b. Creating a supportive environment

The success of the strategy relies on a whole council response that can draw on skills from 
within, across the organisation and leveraging capacity. Commercial propositions have initially 
been developed by wide-ranging conversations with managers and through understanding 
where the commercial team can add value during the process of identifying savings across the 
organisation.

To develop and increase staff involvement, work is commencing with the Culture Change Forum 
to identify and develop ways to engage, encourage and support all staff to propose commercial 
ideas and develop them into an outline business case for consideration and implementation 
where feasibly has been agreed.

• The role of the Commercial Team

A new Commercial Team, led by a new Commercial Director, has been created with lead 
responsibility for a number of key areas that will drive the strategy forward.

• To set the commercial strategy for the Council, ensuring it makes maximum use of alternative 
delivery models and commercial assets to maximise the council’s ability to deliver services to 
meet the needs of Enfield’s citizens

• To help identify new commercial opportunities for the council

Page 17



10 Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy

• To ensure that the council manages all traded services, company’s and contracts to deliver 
maximum value 

• To lead all procurement activity 

As well as having the lead responsibility for these areas, the Commercial Team led by the Director 
will be proactively involved in embedding a more commercially aware approach throughout the 
organisation. The Commercial team will work with operational service heads and senior officers 
to identify future opportunities for innovation and entrepreneurship by:

• Business analysis and development

• Business mentoring, audit and reporting

• Market sounding and engagement

The strategy also recognises there are also critical roles for:

• Departmental Directors and Operational Delivery Teams 
As part of regular (annual) service planning return to support the Corporate Plan, all 
operational service leads will be required to demonstrate consideration of innovative and 
entrepreneurial opportunities to enhance delivery 

• HR/Transformation Teams 
As part of wider cultural shift, leads in HR and Transformation will assist with providing the 
opportunities for training and staff development that can unlock staff potential.

• ICT/Information Management Teams 
Our ICT and Information Management teams will continue to work to identify the enabling IT 
capacity for the organisation to make good on the new approach.

• Communications 
Our Corporate Communications Team will work with the Commercial Board to promote the 
approach and share good news stories with the wider workforce.

Page 18



Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy 11

DEVELOPING NEW PROPOSALS: 
ENGAGING THE PIPELINE

We believe regular service review and planning within departments and teams will provide 
opportunities for staff to reflect on the guiding principles in the strategy and give rise to the 
development of proposals that could meet key objectives.

To facilitate the new approach a rolling pipeline will be designed that will enable operational directors 
and service leads to develop proposals that could meet strategic objectives. The Commercial Team 
will be able to provide advice and guidance where required to enable this to take place.

‘The pipeline’

A rolling pipeline approach to new project development and presentation to the Commercial Board will 
be co-produced with Directors and Heads of Service to ensure consistency and transparency. 

We will seek to establish workstreams in Year 1, identify resources required to drive the new 
processes effectively and develop guidance and embed support roll out of the new approach. 

Typically, the preliminary stages of project development are likely to involve:

• Analysis of internal resources, assets, capabilities and alignment with markets to identify and 
initiate opportunities

• For new proposals or significant change, the development of a Business Case will be required 
to set out the rationale for the proposal, options and cost benefit (with support from Commercial 
Team if required)

• Review by the Commercial Board for oversight and to track benefits

• Decision to Director/Executive Director for agreement

• If within scheme of delegation agreed by ED/Portfolio holder (with notification to Commercial 
Board for oversight)

Once a new project is ready for consideration it will be presented to the Commercial 
Board for review and input. 

or
The approach is one of enablement and empowerment and so not all projects will need 
to go to the Commercial Board for approval. Those that are below a financial threshold 
and where the lead Executive Director and Operational Director are content to approve 
as operational decisions will be reported into the Commercial Board for information and 
resulting good news stories circulated. 

Page 19



12 Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy

‘Ownership’

Developing and realising commercial propositions is a joint endeavour and requires a collaborative 
approach across the organisation: the commercial team, the relevant operational service, multiple 
support services which may include property, planning, legal, procurement, finance, ICT and HR 
amongst others. Clarity of roles and responsibilities, and the appropriate level of ownership are 
however key to success.

Typically following initial scoping a Project Implementation Document (PID) will be produced by 
the Commercial Team in consultation with relevant stakeholders and then formally agreed by the 
Commercial Director and the relevant Operational Director. This will define and articulate the way in 
which the project is to be run as well as ownership of key work packages and products. It will also 
define the handover point between the Commercial Team and the Operational Service.

Project progress will then be reported against this, and associated project document and as a 
minimum a monthly dashboard report will be produced to ensure that Senior Managers are informed 
of project progress and can effectively take action as appropriate when issues and challenges arise.

Page 20



Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy 13

INCLUSIVE, ROBUST GOVERNANCE:  
THE COMMERCIAL BOARD

To ensure the success of our approach it is critical that robust governance is in place that is inclusive 
and reflects the intrinsic value of commercialisation to the local authority.

A new Commercial Board is created that will provide oversight of strategy, operational delivery and 
leadership working with the services through the following four workstreams:

• Companies
• Procurement and Commissioning
• Oversight of Income and Traded Services
• Oversight of Strategic Contract Reviews

The Board will meet quarterly and be responsible for ensuring the strategy is delivered throughout the 
organisation as well as considering emerging proposals to support new approaches to service delivery.

The Board’s core membership will include all three Executive Directors and be chaired by the 
Executive Director of Corporate resources. It will scrutinise proposals and decide whether they are 
approved, referred for further development or not accepted. Where new projects are escalated to 
the Commercial Board, a defined project development and business case approach will have been 
completed (see previous section). 

A summary of the approach to considering proposals is set out below (figure 1).

Proposal presented to Board
(following development)

Conditionally 
agreedNot agree AgreedEvaluation by directorate

Lessons learned

Evaluation

Lessons learned

Evaluation

Proceed to formal 
sign off

Implementation

Reporting

Evaluate by directorate

Re-presented 
to the Board

More work

Implementation

Reporting

Proceed to formal 
sign off

Yes No

Page 21



14 Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy

MEASURING SUCCESS 

The availability of relevant and consistent performance and outcome information to measure the 
success of the strategy is essential. A composite scorecard will be created with input from operational 
delivery staff to give a ‘live snapshot’ of activity supporting the delivery of the strategy. This will allow 
for appropriate oversight and monitoring, enabling Board members to assess progress being made 
and initiate improvement planning if needed. 

ENSURING CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT 

An evaluation framework will be devised and adopted by the Commercial Board that can demonstrate:

• Contribution to Corporate Plan ambitions
• Financial Impact
• Cultural Influence
• Service Improvement

These evaluation principles will provide the basis for organisational learning and future improvement 
planning.

FORTY HALL ESTATE, 
EVENTS AND WEDDING 
VENUE

Page 22



Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy 15

ASSETS AND 
INVESTMENTS: 
HOLLY HILL FARM
Development to improve 
the environment whilst 
also generating income

An exciting project is underway 
at Holly Hill Farm, which aims 

to transform the existing 
environment into a haven for 
wildlife while improving crop 
diversity for the farm.

Farmland is being reprofiled 
to reduce road noise from 
the M25 using innovative 
recycling techniques. The 
land will be planted with 
10,000 new plants and trees 
to create new wildlife habitat 
and improve air quality. A 
sustainable rain water lagoon 
and soil improvements will 
increase crop diversity and 
yield for the future.

Locally excavated inert soil is 
delivered to the site before it is 

recycled under close council 
scrutiny and strict Environment 
Agency rules. Recycled soil 
is then carefully landscaped 
and planted to create an 
environmentally friendly 
landscape. The innovative 
techniques used on Holly Hill 
Farm will generate £2.7million 
income over the next three 
years and will also drastically 
improve the environment. 

CASE STUDY

COMMISSIONING
Ensuring high 
commissioning standards 
whilst facing a challenging 
financial environment

Enfield Council supports in 
excess of 1,250 vulnerable 
elderly residents across the 
borough, either through 
facilitating home care support 

which enables them to remain 
in their own home or by 
helping them to access care 
or nursing homes. Due to 
the staffing challenges in the 
care sector and increasing 
demand from an ageing 
population, there is significant 
pressure on this vital service.
Our organisation continues to 
work closely with local care 
providers to maintain market 
resilience and quality in a 
difficult economic environment. 
We also seek to manage its 
own financial position through 
the use of price bandings and, 
in some situations, a dynamic 
purchasing system.

We have also moved to using 

a direct payment model, 
which after a care and 
support assessment has been 
undertaken, allows an agreed 
personal budget to be paid 
directly to the individual. This 
enables the customer to have 
a choice on how the budget is 
spent as long as it meets the 
outcomes in the individuals’ 
support plan.

Through these examples 
of good commissioning 
practice, the Council are 
able to maintain a good 
quality service for elderly 
residents within an increasingly 
challenging financial 
environment. 

CASE STUDY

Page 23



16 Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy

CONTRACT 
MANAGEMENT 
Strategic contract reviews to 
deliver service improvements 
and efficiencies 

The Council spends more than 
£400m each year with third 

party organisations as part of 
the supply chain for either front 
line services (e.g. Highways 
Maintenance or Care Services) 
or in middle and back office 
support (e.g. IT contracts). 
These contracts are vital to 
ensure a good quality service 
to our residents. 

Managing these contracts 
effectively is critical to ensure 
that the quality being provided 
to our staff and customers by 
any third parties is high, whilst 
also ensuring that the Council 
is receiving value for money 
in line with contractual terms. 

The Council’s commercial team 
is supporting colleagues to 
manage third party contracts 
more strategically through the 
use of contract reviews, spend 
analytics and service delivery 
reviews.  This approach is 
providing insight into potential 
service improvements and 
efficiencies as well as ensuring 
the Council is only paying 
for services that it requires 
and that are delivered by the 
supplier. Recent improvements 
to the organisation’s approach 
to contract management have 
already identified savings in 
excess of £500,000. 

CASE STUDY

CASE STUDY

INCOME GENERATION:  
CEMETERIES
Growth and Sustainability 

Enfield’s Cemeteries service is 
a team that has transformed 
from where they were to where 
they are now. In 2010, they 
were facing a ten-year burial 
capacity in only one of the five 
cemeteries, not managing the 
demand of Enfield residents and 
running at a loss as a service. 

Over the last eight years, the 
team have developed into 
an innovative and creative 

thinking team which is now 
meeting the needs across the 
communities within Enfield 
and have developed vast 
new areas of income for the 
Council. They are now one 
of the leading commercial 
services and are a viable 
income stream for the Council. 

After hearing feedback and 
speaking directly with the 
Muslim community, one of the 
main areas of focus has been 
developing a Muslim burial 
area in Strayfield Cemetery. 
The team also saw a gap in 
the market and installed Burial 
Chambers and Mausolea plots 
into Edmonton, and these will 
also be available across four of 
the sites in the near future. The 
continuous development of 
the service and the cemeteries 
have ensured that the Council 
is able to offer the diverse 

options that is needed for 
the communities within both 
the green belt and urban 
cemeteries locations. 

I just wanted to say thank 
you to you and your team for 
the continual improvement 

over the past few years 
which in turn has enabled us 

to better serve our clients. 
The range of choice from 
burial chambers to new 
availability of traditional 

graves in Edmonton 
cemetery has been 

invaluable to our clients 
whom are at a disadvantage 
due to the wanting situation 
in Haringey. We can’t thank 

you all enough from the 
‘ground’ up to the office.

Damian Melville  
Director, Melville & Daughters 

Funeral Directors

Page 24



Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy 17

TRADED COMPANIES: 
HGL – HOUSING 
GATEWAY LIMITED 
An increasing supply of 
affordable, quality housing 
options 

Housing Gateway Limited 
is a Council owned housing 
company, which is responsible 
for the acquisition and 
management of a property 
portfolio, providing sub-market 
accommodation for Enfield 

residents. In March 2014, the 
target of providing 500 units 
has already been achieved 
15 months early and has now 
been surpassed, with 519 
properties currently owned 
by the company. By reaching 
this target, it has enabled 
the Council to provide good 
quality accommodation for 
tenants and also make a 
cost saving of £4.3m since 
2014. Having sole nomination 
rights to properties and 
therefore moving families 
out of expensive nightly paid 
accommodation has allowed 
us to make a significant 
improvement to our residents 
living conditions and created 
a cost saving for the Council. 
By creating HGL, we have 
also been able to set a clear 
standard for the local market 
which others can be measured 

against. It’s also enabled the 
Council to provide long term 
choices for the future through 
asset ownership.

Another challenge for the 
Council is sourcing suitable 
accommodation for residents 
with disabilities.However HGL 
has been able to purchase 
and tailor properties to 
individual needs, providing 
the Council with a creative 
solution to a complex issue 
whilst also reducing costly 
service placements. By 
being able to provide suitable 
accommodation in the right 
area for these residents has 
improved their quality of 
life, and we are proud to have 
been able to support where 
the private sector could not.

CASE STUDY

Page 25



18 Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy

SCHOOLS TRADED 
SERVICES

Ensuring business 
efficiency by managing 
effective partnerships, to 
give children the best start 
in life. 

Schools Traded Services 
is one of Enfield Council’s 
largest traded services, 
providing a varied range of 
37 services to schools. A 
review was required after 
the service highlighted that 
they felt they could become 
more robust in the face of 
a competitive marketplace, 
which would ensure a higher 
quality delivery and better 
outcomes for children. The first 
phase of work began with 8 
services within the Education 

Department, who are 
responsible for a 17m turnover. 
The Commercial Team were 
asked to analyse and assess 
where savings could be 
made or additional income 
generated. To do this, the 
team worked in detail with staff 
and customers to understand 
more about the services, as 
well as undertaking process 
mapping, activity-based 
costings, benchmarking, and 
market analysis. Services were 
diverse: from schools catering, 
to educational psychology, 
governor’s clerking to careers 
advice and work experience.

Efficiency savings of £301k 
were identified which will allow 
the service to improve its offer 
to schools and help to ensure 
that we are seen as a preferred 
delivery partner by schools. 
The review identified the 
need to improve customer 
relationships and the product 
offer as well as to become 
more efficient in the way 
we deliver, and drive growth 
where this was possible. Three 
key actions were identified to 
address customer retention:

• To establish a schools 
traded business unit 
to provide customer 
account management 
and specialised business 
development, marketing 
and financial support

• To improve marketing, 
communications and sales 
potential by introducing an 
online customer microsite

• To review prices and 
products to ensure these 
are high quality and aligned 
to the market

We’re now continuing to speak 
with schools about how we 
work together in the future and 
how we propose to improve 
our offer to them. Whilst it is 
important that our services 
fully recover their costs and are 
efficient and commercial, it is 
equally vital that we build and 
retain strong partnerships with 
schools and can add value 
for them, especially given our 
shared objective of giving 
young people in Enfield the 
best start in life.

CASE STUDY

Page 26



Securing Enfield’s Future Commercial Strategy 19WHITEWEBBS PARK GOLF COURSE

Page 27



www.enfield.gov.uk

More information
If you would like to feedback comments on this consultative 
draft please send via email to nicky.fiedler@enfield.gov.uk 

Page 28



Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Traded Services
1. To establish profit and loss accounts for all traded services with the default position as 

minimum cost recovery 
2. To put in place a fees and charges policy to be applied to all income and traded services 
3. To capture the wider VFM of Council traded services  
4. To grow the benefit for the Council and Borough its traded services
5. To deliver the new operating model and business plan for school traded services 

Income generation  
1. To establish a consolidated single pipeline of all existing and future income delivery 
2. To maximise grant funding opportunities to support service delivery and wider economic growth. 

Progress is underway with digital infrastructure 
3. To develop potential opportunities through the gateway process and commercial board. 

Proposals being developed include: development of the planning service, renewable energy 
opportunities, expansion the cemeteries service, income generation from filming, further soil 
remediation schemes 

Assets and Investments  
Assets   
1. To establish a complete assets database 
2. To review the current performance of the portfolio and bring forward a Asset management 

strategy to invest and improve the yield.
Investments 
3. To agree a set of investment principles to guide future opportunities for investment in for 

example property, & renewable energy 

Indicative Commercial Pipeline Year 1
P

age 31



Companies
1. To ensure the companies are aligned to the Councils values and realising the anticipated 

benefits to the Council
2. To develop the companies reporting through the Shareholder Board.
3. To review the companies business plans for next 3 years to ensure they aligned to the strategic 

direction of the Council 
4. To ensure LBE protects its interests and maximises the value from the Joint Ventures (Enfield 

Norse and Montague LLP) and has robust commercial management in place. 

Procurement & Commissioning  
1. To review current suppliers and opportunities to rationalise contracts and where appropriate to 

insource work, where we are best placed to do so and or there are wider benefits the borough.
2. To develop 12 category strategies, with initial focus on cleaning, bulk printing and mailing, 

highways maintenance, ground maintenance and security
3. To develop a strategy to address homeless prevention and reduce the spend on temporary 

accommodation 
4. To work with the market and stakeholders to develop a future strategy to reduce costs to the 

Council 

Contract Management   
Strategic Contract Reviews  
1. Public Health  - to review the current service provision to ensure it meets users needs, optimises 

resources and presents VFM
2. To review housing repairs and highways maintenance contracts to improve current performance 

and ensure the future procurement strategy addresses the current issues
3. To work with Fusion to improve the offer from the current contract and the financial return. This 

will include an option to re-develop the Arnos site.

P
age 32



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19 

 
The Role of Scrutiny in Meeting the Public Sector Equality Duty 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has a key role to play in ensuring that the Council meets all the statutory duties under the Public Sector 

Equality Duty of the Equality Act 2010, particularly in ensuring that the authority has due regard to the needs of diverse groups when designing, 

evaluating and delivering services in order to – 

• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited by the Act. 
• advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. 
• foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. 
 

In order to do this, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will scrutinise the Council's Equality and Diversity Action Plan and Annual 

Achievement Report each year to monitor the Authority’s performance. The OS Committee will be flexible enough to pick up on issues of 

inequality, wherever they arise in the Council work programme, or to delegate to individual workstreams for investigation. OSC has a key role in 

providing a ‘critical friend’ challenge to the Council’s strategic equality objectives and scrutinising performance in delivering those objectives. 

In addition, as part of their normal work programme, each workstream will (where relevant and proportionate) - 

• request information about the equality impact assessments/analyses that have been undertaken whenever discussing proposals for 
new policies or future plans, or for current services, to inform their comments on those proposals or services 

• examine these assessments/analyses of impact in detail to check if they are robust and have been developed based on strong evidence 
and appropriate engagement 

• question and consider whether appropriate people have been involved and engaged in developing equality objectives and plans, and 
when assessing the impact of policies and proposals. 

• when procurement award criteria and contracts are determined, consider whether or not specific equality stipulations are required 
• Scrutiny may also wish to investigate the accessibility of equality and other published documents, asking questions such as – 

o what is done to promote these documents? 
o what languages or formats is the information available in? 
o which documents are most regularly required? 
o how aware are the public of the Authority’s equality plans and performance? 

 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 5



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19 

 
 

WORK 
 

12 June  
(Planning) 

12 July 
  

26th July 5 Sept  11 Oct 7 Nov  15 Jan 
 

12 Feb  03 April 

Date papers to be with 
Scrutiny Team 

 

 3
rd

 July 17
th

 July 24
th

 August  29 October 4 
January 

1 February 25 March 

Specific Topics:          

Leader/ Cabinet Member 
 
 

  Leader- 
discussion 
item 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Environment-  
Discussion 
item 
 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Children’s 
Services- 
Discussion 
item 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Finance & 
Procurement 

   

Meridian Water  
 

       Report  

Pre Decision scrutiny          

Genotin Road Carpark
  

Report         

Safeguarding Adults 
Strategy consultation 2018-
23 
 

 Report        

Homelessness Strategy 
 

     Report    

Customer Experience 
Strategy 
 

   Report      

Budget 
 

     Report    

Housing Repairs and 
Maintenance 
 

         

Commercial Strategy 
 

    Report     

P
age 34



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19 

 
WORK 

 

12 June  
(Planning) 

12 July 
  

26th July 5 Sept  11 Oct 7 Nov  15 Jan 
 

12 Feb  03 April 

Standing Items          

Children’s and Young 
People’s Issues 

   Monitoring 

Items: 

Fostering & 

Adoption/IRO/

LADO/ 

Annual LSCB 

report 

 Children’s 

Social Care 

Self -

evaluation 

 Local Offer 

for Leaving 

Care 

Regional 

Adoption 

agency 

Annual 

Complaints 

Report for 

Children’s 

Social Care & 

Adult Social 

Care  

Monitoring/Updates          

Scrutiny Involvement in  
Budget Consultation 18/19 
 

      Budget 
Meeting 

  

Safeguarding Annual 
Report - Adults Services 
 

         

Speech & Language 
Therapy Scrutiny 
Workstream 
 

       Update   

Housing Repairs Scrutiny 
Workstream 

     Update     

Human Trafficking Scrutiny 
workstream 

        Update  

Annual Corporate 
Complaints Report 

        Report 

Customer Experience 
 

       Report  

P
age 35



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19 

 
WORK 

 

12 June  
(Planning) 

12 July 
  

26th July 5 Sept  11 Oct 7 Nov  15 Jan 
 

12 Feb  03 April 

Work Programme          

Setting the Overview & 
Scrutiny Annual Work 
Programme 2018/19 

Agree Work 
Programme 
and discuss 
workstreams 

Finalise 
workstreams 

       

Selection of New 
Workstreams for 2018/19 

Discuss new 
Workstreams  

Finalise new 
workstreams 

       

 

Note: Provisional call-in dates: -   8th November, 6
th

  and 20
th

 December, 7
th

 February, 12
th

 and 26
th

 March, 11
th

 April. These dates may also be used 

for pre-decision scrutiny as necessary. *11
th
 October was originally a provisional call-in date but will now be used for business meeting. Any call-ins received will 

take precedence at this meeting.       
 

                                            Please note that the above programme may be subject to change during the course of the year 

P
age 36


	Agenda
	4 COMMERCIAL STRATEGY
	Appendix 1 Commercial Strategy
	Appendix 2- Commercial Plan
	Appendix 3 - Commercial Pipeline- Year 1

	5 WORK PROGRAMME 2018/19

